### BY-LAWS OF THE VILLAS AT COUNTRY HAVEN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

The following are the Bylaws of The Villas at Country Haven Homeowners Association, Inc., a Utah nonprofit corporation (the "Association"). Upon recordation of these Bylaws, they are binding upon the Association and all present and future Owners and/or occupants.

#### ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1 Definitions. All terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given them under that certain Declaration of Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions for The Villas at Country Haven of even date and recorded in the Official Records of the Weber County Recorder's Office (hereinafter referred to as the "Declaration"), and as the same may be amended from time to time as therein provided, said Declaration being incorporated herein, as if set forth herein at length. The term "Owner" shall mean and refer to those persons entitled to membership in the Association, as provided in the Declaration and Articles of Incorporation of the Association.

# ARTICLE II MEETINGS OF OWNERS

Section 2.1 Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of the Owners shall be held no less than once each calendar year. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the annual meeting of the Owners shall be held on the second Wednesday in November of each year at a location and time designated by the Board. The Board may modify the date, time and location of the annual meeting in accordance with Section 2.3 below.

Section 2.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Owners may be called at the request of the Board, or upon written request of the Owners holding at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the total membership, as defined in the Declaration.

Section 2.3 Notice of Meetings. Unless an Owner requests in writing that all notices be provided to said Owner by U.S. mail, all notices shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Board via: (1) email or other electronic communication. Notice, subject to Section 2.4, shall be provided at least ten (10) days before a meeting, but no more than sixty (60) days, to each Owner entitled to vote at the email or electronic address provided by the Owner to the Board. Said notice is effective upon sending the email or electronic communication. Such notice shall specify the location, day and time of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

Since an Owner may be more than one Person, if only one of such Person(s) is present at the meeting of the Association, that Person shall be entitled to cast all votes appertaining to that Lot. But if more than one of such Person(s) is present, the votes appertaining to that Lot shall be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority of them, and such consent shall be conclusively presumed if any one of them purports to cast the votes appertaining to that Lot without protest being made forthwith by any of the others to the person presiding over the meeting. The votes appurtenant to any one Lot may not be divided between Owners of such Lot or with respect to matters before the Association, and all such votes appurtenant to any one Lot shall be voted in one block. If the vote of a majority of the owners of a Lot cannot be determined, no vote shall be cast in relation to such Lot.

### ARTICLE III BOARD, SELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE

Section 3.1 Number & Tenure. Except for the Initial Board selected by Declarant, which consists of three members, and their successors, that may hold office so long as Class B membership specified in the Declaration exists, the affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors composed of three (3) individuals ("Board"). At the first meeting of the Owners at which the election of Directors will take place following the Class B Control Period, the candidate who receives the most votes shall serve as a Director for three (3) years. The candidate that receives the second highest number of votes shall serve as a Director for two (2) years, and the third candidate who receives the third highest number of votes shall serve as Director for one (1) year. At each annual election, the successor to the Director whose term shall expire in that year shall be elected to hold office for the term of (3) years. Any change in the number of Directors may be made only by amendment of these Bylaws. The members of the Board of Directors shall serve until their respective successors are elected, or until their death, resignation or removal.

Section 3.2 Eligibility. Following the Class B Control Period, all members of the Board shall be Owners.

Section 3.3 Resignation & Removal. A Director may resign at any time by delivering a written resignation to either the President or the Board. Unless otherwise specified therein, such resignation shall take effect upon delivery. Any Director, except during Class B Control Period, may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a vote of at least (51%) of the Owners of the Association. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a Director, his successor shall be selected by the remaining Directors and shall serve for the unexpired term of his predecessor.

Section 3.4 Compensation. No Director shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Association. However, any Director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties.

by any two (2) Directors, after not less than twenty-four (24) hours' notice to each Director.

Section 5.3 Quorum. A majority of the number of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board.

Section 5.4 Conduct of Meetings. The President, or in his absence the Vice President, shall preside over all meetings. The Secretary or other authorized person shall keep minutes of all meetings and maintain a record of the minutes including, but not limited to: election of Officers, adopted resolutions, adopted Rules and other non-privileged matters coming before the Directors. The Board shall keep a copy of all approved minutes and make them reasonably available to Owners upon their written request. Corrections and/or changes to the minutes shall be made at the next meeting of the Board

#### ARTICLE VI POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

Section 6.1 Powers and Duties. The Board shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration and as outlined below. The Board may delegate its authority to a manager or managers, subject to any limitations or provisions contained in the Declaration, the Board shall be responsible for a number of activities including, but not limited to the following:

- (a) Management of the Association;
- (b) Preparation of annual assessments and budget;
- (c) Collection of assessments;
- (d) Maintenance of a bank account for the Association and designating required signatories;
- (e) Maintenance of the Common Areas and Facilities;
- (f) Maintenance of any private irrigation system or other private utility;
- (g) Adoption and amendment of rules and regulations;
- (h) Enforcement of the Declaration, including the retention of legal counsel;
- (i) Commencement of legal action when necessary;
- (i) Imposition of fines, sanctions and citations;
- (k) Payment of any amount necessary to discharge any mechanic's or materialman's lien or other encumbrance levied against the Common Area or Facilities;
- Purchase of and maintenance of insurance;
- (m)Maintenance of books and records of the Association;
- (n) Emergency repairs;
- (o) Maintenance of parking;
- (p) Adoption of reasonable pet restrictions; and
- (q) Performance of other actions and duties to enforce the terms and conditions of the Declaration and effectively manage the Association.

the Owners of the Association together with their addresses and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.

Secretary/Treasurer: The secretary/treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board; shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes of the association; keep proper books of account; if the Board deems appropriate, cause an annual audit of the Association books to be made by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the Owners.

# ARTICLE VIII COMMITTEES

Section 8.1 Committees. The Board may, if it elects, appoint such committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purposes, including appointment of an Architectural Review Board. A committee shall not have any powers, duties, or responsibilities beyond those specifically assigned by the Board. The Board may terminate any committee at any time.

# ARTICLE IX INDEMNIFICATION

Section 9.1 Indemnification. No Director, officer, or member of a committee shall be personally liable for any obligations of the Association or for any duties or obligations arising out of any acts or conduct of said Director, officer, or committee member performed for or on behalf of the Association. The Association shall and does hereby indemnify and hold harmless each person who shall serve at any time as a Director, officer of the Association, or a member of a duly formed committee, as well as such person's heirs and administrators, from and against any and all claims, judgments, and liabilities to which such persons shall become subject, by reason of that person having heretofore or hereafter been a Director, officer of the Association, or member of a committee or by reason of any action alleged to have been heretofore or hereafter taken or omitted to have been taken by him/her as such Director, officer, or committee member, and shall advance and reimburse any such person for all legal and other expenses reasonably incurred in connection with any such claim or liability; provided that the Association shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to defend such person from all suits or claims; provided further. However, that no such person shall be indemnified against or be reimbursed for or be defended against any expense or liability incurred in connection with any claim or action arising out of such person's intentional misconduct. The rights accruing to any person under the foregoing provisions of this section shall not exclude any other right to which such person may lawfully be entitled, nor shall anything herein contained restrict the right of the Association to indemnify or reimburse such person in any proper case, even though not specifically provided for herein or otherwise permitted.

# ARTICLE XI AMENDMENTS, ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

Section 11.1 Amendment. Following the Class B Control Period, these Bylaws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the Owners, by Owners holding at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the total membership or by the written consent of at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the total membership. An amendment to these Bylaws shall be effective immediately upon recordation in the Office of the Davis County Recorder, State of Utah. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.

#### ARTICLE XII FISCAL YEAR

Section 12.1 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and end on the 31<sup>st</sup> day of December of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation.

The foregoing Bylaws are adopted by the undersigned and made effective upon recordation in the Office of the Davis County Recorder, State of Utah.

THE VILLAS AT COUNTRY HAVEN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. A Utah nonprofit corporation	THE VILLAS AT COUNTRY HAVEN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. A Utah nonprofit corporation
By: Brad Frost  Its:     True   True	By: NomeFrost    Orm Frost  Its:   Cae President